
 

PRE-BID MEETING Q & A 
 
RFP No.: 24-01 
RFP Title: Alaska Fiberoptic Project 

Lower Kuskokwim River Segment 
Design and Build - Terrestrial Fiber and Fiber to the Home 

 
Date:  May 29, 2024 
Time:  2:00 PM 
Location:  Anchorage, Alaska via Microsoft Teams 

 

 

1. In the RFP there was mention of different options between shallow buried cable and surface laid 

cable.  Does ACS have a preference as to how that is presented? 

We rely on the expertise of the engineers. Our preference is to bury but there is an option for an 
overland ground lay between Upper Kalskag and the Yukon River. 
 

2. Are the FTTH builds in the villages expected be Underground or aerial?  

We expect the bulk of the work will be aerial on existing pole lines with a few exceptions.  For example, 
from the BMH to the first pole the fiber could be underground and from the last pole closest to the CO 
the fiber will be underground to tie into the CO. 
 

3. Are the fiber huts design/construction and placement part of this SOW? 

No, the shelters are not a part of this RFP 24-01. 
We have a forthcoming RFP for the build, transport, and placement of the huts. We will work with our 
partners on the specific location and will develop the criteria for the elevation, ground grid, piling if 
necessary, site prep, etc.  That RFP will likely be for the CO hut, backup generator, and a small Connex.  
The notion being that we can use the Connex to send the gen-set out in and any other various materials 
and then the Connex remains on site next to the CO. 
 

4. Drops included? 

Yes, drops are included. 
 

5. Is Owl ridge handling all the permits for the project besides the SWPPP? 

Yes. Owl Ridge is handling permitting for the project except for the SWPPP.  Please see the attached 
Permit Matrix. 
 

6. Clarify Owl ridge permitting. Will they do wetlands and SHPO? What is contactor responsibility? 

Yes.  Owl Ridge will do wetlands and SHPO.  Please see attached Permit Matrix. 
 

7. Is there a forthcoming RFP for the River Boring? 

Yes. The notion is that the river cable, cable installation, and marine boring required to support 
submarine cable installation from BMH to deepest section of the river will be in one RFP. 
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8. Have any permits been submitted and approved? 

Please see the attached Permit Matrix which lists all Federal and State permits that Owl Ridge will 
secure for the project. Any local construction permits will be the responsibility of the winning bidder. 
 

9. Attachment 6 is referenced in the RFP but not on the web site, Is it available? 

Attachment 6 is a photo which is included in the RFP document on Page 30. 
 

10. Does ACS have any info on the number of homes in each village and commercial/government 

buildings will be hit in each village? 

In addition to the residential drop counts below, we anticipate fewer than 10 commercial/business 
services in each community.   
 

Community Households 
Napakiak  114 
Kwethluk  231 
Akiachak  183 
Akiak   98 
Tulusak   99 
Lower Kalskag  82 
Upper Kalskag  74 

 

11. Are the beach man holes specs by ACS or the D/B team? Is the anchoring requirement for the 

marine fiber identified yet such as nipples for split armoring or just plate anchors attached to 

armor wire as this will drive size/weight/logistics per landing? 

The BMH specs are provided in the RFP on Pages 18-19.  We do not intend to utilize split armoring. The 
required anchoring will consist of plate anchors attached to armor wires.   
 

12. Will Boring Be signatory companies? 

Boring is not a requirement in the scope of Alaska Communications RFP 24-01. 
 

13. Are any pole line as-builts available for each village?  

We are working with Calista to identify pole owners and gather as-builts for each village. We will send 
out the information as soon as possible. We want to alleviate multiple calls from multiple sources to the 
owners. 
 

14. Does ACS have a list of materials that they will be supplying? Versus what the contractor will be 

required to supply? If any are supplied by ACS will the contractor be required to cover the cost 

for shipping to the villages for the ACS supplied materials? 

We are not providing material for this project. Contractor will supply and is responsible for all materials 
including shipping. 
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15. The RFP mentions Right of Way clearance in the forested areas, can you provide information on 

what is required? 

We expect minimal ROW clearing in forested areas. We anticipate most of the construction will be on 
existing pole lines in previously cleared ROW. 
 

16. What are the payment terms?  

Alaska Communications pays on NT45 basis. We may consider any payment plan proposed by the 
winning bidder. 
 

17. Verify the schedule please. The provided schedule indicated an engineering start date in January. 

Is the 30% due date in August even though the start date is June. 

The Project Schedule attached to RFP 24-01 is behind. Please include a schedule with your proposal that 
meets the project completion date provided in the RFP of January 7, 2026. We will work with the 
winning bidder and Owl Ridge to update the schedule after the award of this RFP.  Ideally, we would like 
to see the 30% due date in August. 
There is a possibility of the completion date changing but it will be determined after award upon 
consultation with the winning proposer and Owl Ridge. 
 

18. Is there a preferred architecture for the FTTH? Preferred equipment, MST vs OFDC? Are 

equipment recommendations the responsibility of the contractor? 

Overall Engineering Recommendations: 
o The head end equipment will be placed in the ACS Central Office building/shelter. 
o All splitters will be placed in the CO. Splitters will not be placed in the field. 
o There will be at least one fiber run to every serving location from the CO for FTTH, a minimum 

of two fibers to each commercial/government location from the CO. 
o Contractor will make allowance for future growth, expansion, and maintenance in the total 

number of feeder and distribution fibers proposed. 
o Clearfield is the preferred manufacturer, but alternatives can be requested for AC approval. 

 
Per Village (number and size of cable dependent on number of subscribers): 

o Overall Engineering Recommendations apply. 
o High count fiber run from 1:32 splits at the FDH, homeruns from the FDH to the customers. 
o Place 144 fiber from the CO and distribute fiber with splices between the customers. 
o Armored fiber is recommended for aerial construction to protect the fiber from environmental 

issues. 
o Bulk-head splice cases are recommended as splice points to use. 

 
19. Is there going to be a delay in ACS's ability to pay an invoice to cover the purchase of material 

ASAP after NTA? 

Alaska Communications pays via Net 45 terms. 
 

20. Are there any staging areas for materials available in each village? 

We are still investigating this question and will have more information soon. 
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21. Is the contractor providing inspectors? 

Alaska Communications will provide inspectors throughout the construction process. 
 

22. What is the main method of access to the villages? 

Airplane and boat. 
 

23. Have you identified the pole owners? Are pole calcs required on all poles? 

We intend to provide more information on this as soon as possible. 
 

24. Will you be distributing the questions asked here? 

Yes. 
 

25. What is the required depth of underground construction? 

We encourage the contractor to leverage the design/build aspect of the contract to value engineer OSP 
routes. If buried construction is chosen, burial depth shall be 36” in areas with utilities and at risk of 
being dug up. All other areas shall be 24”. 
 

26. Will buried construction be direct bury or in duct? 

Proposer should provide recommendations. There is not a lot of buried fiber involved, most will be 
distributed via pole line besides the shelter to the pole and between BMH and shelter. We would like 
the section on the land bridge between Upper Kalskag and the Yukon River to be buried to the extent 
possible. 
 

27. When you send out the list of questions, can you also provide the list of villages that will NOT get 

the FTTH overbuild? Thanks. 

No overbuild in: Oscarville, Napaskiak, and Bethel. 
 

28. Is the funding BABA or Buy America? 

Yes. Please see Appendix A for federal clauses made a part of RFP 24-01. There are certain Buy America 

requirements associated with this project. Please refer to current federal requirements applicable to the 

Tribal Broadband Connectivity Program. For convenience here is a link to the updated list of countries 

whose procurement complies with the "Buy American" requirements: 

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2024-05-23/pdf/2024-11339.pdf 

 
29. Do all personnel of the build need to be signatory including engineering? 

No, see Section 1.2 of the RFP, which states: “Alaska Communications will consider proposals from 
proposers under a current CBA, who have a letter of assent with the local IBEW 1547, or who agree that 
any IBEW 1547 work will be performed only by represented employees.”  Alaska Communications’ 
existing CBA requires that subcontractors for communications maintenance, new construction or 
electrical work normally performed by employees represented by the IBEW have a current collective 
bargaining agreement or letter of asset with the IBEW Local Union 1547.   
 

https://www.govinfo.gov/content/pkg/FR-2024-05-23/pdf/2024-11339.pdf
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30. Is there a specified number of fibers required in the overland route? 

A minimum of 48. 
 

31. Can you clarify in the answers if it’s Buy America or Buy American and any other federal criteria 

we need to follow? 

Please see Question 28 above. 
 

32. Any information regarding housing and logistics within the villages that you can provide will help 

keep everyone from inundating the villages with calls. 

Proposers may utilize the attached Contact List.  
 

33. If power make-ready work/pole replacements are required for pole attachments, is that work 

excluded from this RFP? 

The make-ready work is included in the RFP. 
 

34. Can you include information about any scheduled boat transport to the villages? 

Please see the attached Contact List. 
 

35. When will you know the location of every POP, so we know where to build to? 

We will provide this information as soon as possible. 
. 

36. Who’s responsible for leases or property procurement if the contractor is responsible for picking 

location? 

Alaska Communications’ responsibility. Contractor is not responsible for picking the location. 
 

37. Can you describe again how to get to Napaskiak and what is required there? Is a bore in-scope 

for this RFP? 

Airplane and boat.  There is no bore required in this RFP 24-01.  Napaskiak requires a BMH and a fiber 
cable from the BMH to the POP. 
 

38. Are there any known schedule limitations, i.e. local festivals or times of year that construction 

would be limited in the different villages? 

We are not aware of any schedule limitations. 
 

39. What are the milestone dates for the river work so we can schedule around that? 

We don’t foresee any conflicts between RFP 24-01 and the upcoming RFP for the river work. 
 

40. What type of warranty is ACS looking at? 

The warranty period shall be 12 months after the date of acceptance of the work by Alaska 
Communications (in accordance with the MGCA, Section 35.1). 
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41. It was requested of Owl Ridge to provide a shapefile on the Web Mapper Application. 

Owl Ridge has updated the Web Mapper to add the shapefiles.  
 

42. What kind of NID/TAP are you using? 
This is a design-build. We recommend using the Clearfield HDK-DFCC-CDF6-CCFW1 as an example 
(photos below). We need it to be plug and play for the installer. 
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PERMIT MATRIX 
Provided by Owl Ridge, dated 5/31/24 

 

[continued on the fol lowing page]  
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CONTACT LIST 
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